

Visakah Printers  
Madras-4



The Lodge *Justitia*



**LODGE JUSTITIA**

No. 82 G. L. I.

BYE-LAWS

## LODGE JUSTITIA

No. 82 G.L.I.

---

Bye-laws of the Lodge Justitia No. 82 G.L.I. framed under Rule 111 of the Book of Constitutions of the Grand Lodge of India.

1. **Eligibility for membership:** Persons who belong to legal profession or have held or hold judicial offices or have been or are Secretaries, Deputy Secretaries and Assistant Secretaries in the Law and Legislature Departments of State or Central Government or who hold a Degree in Law are eligible to become Members of the Lodge.

2. **Members:** The Members of the Lodge shall comprise of three classes, namely, Resident, Non-Resident and Honorary.

*Explanation 1:* Resident Members are those who ordinarily reside within the Corporation limits of the City of Madras.

*Explanation 2:* Non-resident Members are those who ordinarily reside beyond the Corporation limits of the City of Madras and placed on the list of Non-resident Members as provided for in By-law 3.

*Explanation 3:* Honorary Members are those elected as such by the Lodge in accordance with Rule 142 of the Book of Constitutions.

3. Any Resident Member who ceases to reside within the limits of the City of Madras may be placed on the list of Non-resident Members on his application to the Secretary with effect from the English calendar month following the month in which the application is received.

4. Non-resident Members residing within the limits of the City of Madras for not less than three consecutive months shall be transferred to the list of Resident Members with effect from the month next after the month in which the three months' period is completed.

5. **Subscription** (1) Every Resident Member shall pay a quarterly subscription of Rs. 15/- and

every Non-resident Member shall pay a quarterly subscription of Rs. 7/50.

(2) The subscription shall be paid in advance in each quarter of the year.

(3) The Member admitted in the second or third month of the quarter shall pay only Rs. 10/- or Rs. 5/- respectively if a Resident Member, and if a Non-resident Member only Rs. 5/- and Rs. 2/5 respectively.

6. **Exclusion:** (1) Any Member whose subscription remains unpaid for two quarters, shall be liable to be excluded in accordance with the provisions contained in Rule 156 of the Book of Constitutions.

(2) Any Member who has been excluded under By-law 6(1) may be permitted to rejoin,

Provided that he is regularly proposed and allotted for in accordance with Rule 138 of the Book of Constitutions, and

Provided further he pays all arrears due to him and the prescribed fee for rejoining.

**7. Initiation and Joining** (1) No candidate for initiation or joining shall be initiated or balloted for until he has signed the declaration as set forth under Rules 136 and 137 of the Book of Constitutions and has been duly proposed and seconded and all fees payable therefor have been paid.

(2) Applications for initiation or joining shall be deposited with the Secretary at least seven days before the meeting at which the candidate is to be proposed and seconded.

(3) No candidate shall be initiated or joining Member received, if on the ballot two black-balls appear against him :

Provided if the Master is of the opinion that a mistake may have occurred in the ballot, he may order a second ballot to be taken forthwith and the result of such second ballot shall be finally accepted.

(4) In all cases of unfavourable ballot, the fees previously paid by the candidate shall be refunded.

(5) Any candidate rejected for initiation or membership shall not be again proposed to the Lodge

until the expiry of six months from the date of the last ballot.

(6) The scale of fees payable by a candidate for initiation or joining or re-joining shall be as follows :—

(i) Initiation	Rs. 150	00
(ii) Joining from G.L.I.	„	35 00
(iii) Joining from other constitutions	„	50 00
(iv) Rejoining	„	20 00

(7) Any candidate at whose request an emergency meeting is convened shall pay a fee of Rs. 15 therefor.

**8. Regular Meeting:** The Regular meeting of the Lodge shall be held at the Freemason's Hall Madras on the 2nd Saturday of every month, except the months of May and June, at such hour as may be directed by the Master from time to time.

**9. Emergency Meeting:** Emergency meetings may be held for the purposes mentioned in the Book of Constitutions and in accordance with the provisions thereof.

**10. Election and Installation Meetings:** (1) The Master shall be annually elected at the Regular Meeting in November and shall be installed at the next Regular Meeting in December.

(2) The Tyler shall also be elected at the Meeting in November.

**11. Audit Committee:** The Lodge shall annually at its regular meeting in November elect 2 Brethren to the Committee prescribed in Rule 130 of the Book of Constitutions.

**12. Permanent Committee:** (1) The Lodge shall at the Installation meeting appoint a permanent Committee which shall consist of the Master, the Immediate Past Master, the Wardens, the Treasurer, the Secretary and the Senior Steward with three other members elected by the Lodge.

(2) The Permanent Committee shall meet once at least in every month, except in the months of May and June, before the Regular Meeting.

(3) The Master, in the absence of the Master, the Immediate Past Master or in his absence the senior-most Brother present shall preside.

(4) In order to constitute a meeting of the Committee, the quorum shall be three.

(5) All matters shall be decided by a majority decision.

(6) In the case of conflict of votes on any matter, the person who presides shall have a second or casting vote.

(7) All proceedings of the Permanent Committee shall be signed by the person who presides.

**13. Secretary:** (1) The Secretary of the Lodge shall conduct the general correspondence, issue summonses for all meetings, record Minutes of the proceedings, keep the Members' Register and the Declaration Book.

(2) The Secretary along with the outgoing incumbent in the said office shall every year soon after taking charge of his office but not later than the next regular meeting of the Lodge, prepare an inventory of all articles, books and records of the Lodge and sign the same, countersigned by the Master and Immediate Past Master and place the same before the Permanent Committee for its inspection and information;

(3) He shall also keep in safe custody all records and take charge of the Lodge Seal.

(4) He shall make payments for petty contingent expenses, for which purpose he shall receive an advance of not more than Rs. 25/- from the Treasurer from time to time.

(5) He shall be Ex-Officio Secretary to all Committees.

**14. Treasurer:** (1) The Treasurer shall have charge of and be responsible for the moneys and account books of the Lodge.

(2) He shall receive all collections and remit the moneys into the Bank from time to time.

(3) He shall not keep more than Rs. 25/- at any time on hand.

(4) He shall make no payments save on the authority of the Master or the Officer in charge of the Lodge.

**15. Propositions:** (1) No motion unless it is purely formal or technical shall be raised in the Lodge at any meeting for which notice has not been given in the previous Regular Meeting or by a communication

addressed to the Secretary not less than 14 days before the meeting at which such proposition is to be made. The said motion shall be included in the summons.

Provided the Master and the majority of the Brethren present shall have the power to enable any urgent proposition of importance to be raised and put to the vote of the Lodge.

(2) No question once decided shall be raised again without the permission of the Master or until 3 months have elapsed.

**16. Constitutions:** In respect of matters not specifically and expressly provided for in the By-Laws the Laws and Regulations of the Grand Lodge of India as embodied in the Book of Constitutions shall apply.

**17. Bye-Laws:** (1) It shall not be competent for the Brethren to abrogate, amend, add to or alter these Bye-Laws, unless the abrogation, amendment or alteration shall have been approved of at one Regular Meeting and confirmed at the next Regular Meeting of the Lodge and approved by the R. W. Regional Grand Master of Southern India and the M.W. Grand Master.

(2) In the event of any abrogation, amendment or revision of any bye-law or bye-laws, the Secretary shall provide each member with a copy thereof after approval by the R.W. the Regional Grand Master of Southern India and by the M.W. the Grand Master.

(3) Every Member of the Lodge on his initiation or joining shall be presented with a copy of these bye-laws and his acceptance thereof shall be deemed a pledge of his strict adherence and submission to the rules contained therein.

A. Radhakrishnan,  
*Senior Warden.*

N. Kasi Viswanathan,  
*Wor. Master.*

C. D. Natarajan,  
*Junior Warden.*

D. B. Jagannath Rao,  
*Secretary.*

*Approved.*

M. M. A. Navas,

*Asst. Regional Grand Master.*

Madras, }  
24-12-64. }

approved by the most worshipful the Grand Master

New Delhi, }  
2-1-1965. }

P. M. Sundaram,  
*Grand Secretary,*